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The Warrick County Drainage Board met in regular session with President Tim Mosbey presiding over the meeting, also present were Art Noffsinger, Vice-President; Don Williams, Secretary; Phillip H. Baxter, Surveyor; Bobby Howard, Director of Storm Water; Rod Madden, Deputy; David K. Zengler, Attorney for Boards and Cheryl D. Embry, recording secretary.

Present in the audience were Pamela Trickey, Carol Schnell, Charles Lewis, Earl Schnell, David Reynolds and Keith Messmer. Sherri Rector from APC was also present.

The meeting started with the members and audience reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

President Mosbey: I will now call the June 28th Warrick County Drainage Board/Storm Water Board Meeting to order. The first item on the agenda is the approval of the June 14, 2010 minutes.

Commissioner Williams: I move that we approve.

Commissioner Noffsinger: Second

Motion was made and seconded to approve minutes. Motion carried 3-0.

DRAINAGE APPROVAL

GOURLEY ESTATES:

Commissioner Mosbey: Next on the agenda is drainage approval for Gourley Estates.

Commissioner Williams: Mr. President,  it is my understanding that the title has still not been resolved, therefore, I would make the motion that this be tabled to the August 9, 2010 meeting.

Commissioner Mosbey: Did you want to say anything? You are welcome to approach the podium.

Pam Trickey: My name is Pam Trickey and I’m the developer of the proposed Gourley Estates, it is confirmed that the deed has not been granted by Judge Kelley, it is in front of him but he has not signed that deed yet. I wanted to confirm just a couple of items before the motion was voted on, it is my understanding that Bill Bivins has personally or arranged to have delivered the attached information that was delivered to County Commissioners, the Surveyor and the Engineer.

Commissioner Williams:  We have that but I have not had time to go through it all yet but we do have the information.

Ms. Trickey: Okay, it was color coded as well as information about drainage calculations so it as a stand alone document hopefully would answer any questions that you would have and of course if there are any other questions please let Bill or myself know prior to the meeting. One of the other questions I would ask is instead of having it tabled for the August meeting if there was any way to request that you’re meeting if you are having a meeting on July 11 I would like to request that the meeting be postponed or the hearing postponed until July instead of August if possible, again I’m not sure of your time table or plans that you might have.
Commissioner Williams: It won’t be July 11 for sure because that is a Sunday.

Ms. Trickey: Whatever the July meeting was for that next where all three members were all meeting on that same day. I’m not sure when that date is.

Commissioner Williams: Sherri, When is the earliest the Planning Commission could hear this?

Sherri Rector: At the last meeting what the motion was that if she received approval today of course it would go in July, if she did not and nothing else was filed to be heard by the Board then it would go to the August meeting, the meeting that you were saying so it will not go in July because nothing else was filed.

Ms. Trickey: Okay, thank you. I appreciate it.

Commissioner Mosbey: I have a motion to table this until August 9, 2010 do I have a second?

Commissioner Noffsinger: Second.

Motion was made and seconded to table. Motion passed 3-0.

DISSCUSSION OF PETITION:

SCHNELL VS MESSMER:

Commissioner Mosbey: Next item discussion of petition Earl and Carol Schnell, the petition….do you want to approach, I think the petition was for the public hearing, is that correct?

David Zengler: No, well the…eventually it will be petitioned for public hearing the issue I think for now is whether the Surveyor has made his report yet or not before the matter can be set for public hearing the statute requires the Surveyor upon investigation finding existing obstruction in a drain or natural surface water course in the location alleged in the petition.
Commissioner Mosbey: Well, I would say that we just received the report from Mr. Sherwood who was directed by the Surveyor to you know what we discussed last meeting to look at this situation and I personally haven’t had time to read this so if we could take it under advisement possibly and see what…..

Commissioner Williams: What two weeks?

Commissioner Mosbey: Today is the 28th our next meeting is the 12th Yes I would say Monday the 12th, what is you’re feelings the two of you?

Commissioner Williams: that would give us enough time.

Commissioner Noffsinger: I would like to table this and take it under advisement until the 12th.

Earl Schnell: My name is Earl Schnell but how many days has it been there that nobody has this stuff, when was the report finished, I should say. When was it presented to the Surveyor?
Commissioner Mosbey: The date on it is June 18th, now when the Surveyor received it I do not have a clue and it was just in our mail slots today for our meeting. I apologize but…..

Mr. Schnell: Can I get a copy of this?

Commissioner Mosbey: It’s public record once we have received it as far as I….I’m not attorney but yes you can get a copy.

Mr. Schnell: Okay so I can get a copy of this somewhere today?

Commissioner Mosbey: Yes, after the meeting because it is now in our records.

Mr. Schnell: Somehow we’ve got to get this thing moving I don’t know how many times I have to take off work and how many times I have to come up here.

Commissioner Mosbey: I totally agree the issue of this being a waterway or drainage that is what Mr. Sherwood’s hopefully will give us an opinion. The attorney..help me out what else do we need defined clearly.

David Zengler: What we need to know is whether there is a natural surface water course that’s been obstructed in the location that is in the petition and that has to be done by….that report has to be done by the County Surveyor or Mr. Sherwood could make it for him.

Commissioner Mosbey: And that would be in this report.

Mr. Schnell: How long will it take you guys to read that, I mean I’ve got time.

Commissioner Mosbey: Well, I think we need more time than just sitting here in a meeting, I apologize but that is my own opinion but certified surveyor’s are kind of like attorneys they use wording sometimes that I need explained to me. But I don’t see why we couldn’t….what is you’re opinion either one of you?
Commissioner Williams: I can go either way.  I’m fine if you guys want to make a motion.

Commissioner Noffsinger: I make a motion that we take this under advisement until the 12th.

Commissioner Williams: I’ll second that.

Commissioner Mosbey: We have a motion and a second on the floor to have this on the agenda for July 12, 2010 concerning the petition for Mr. Schnell all in favor say aye. Motion passed 3-0.

Commissioner Williams: Now at that time if we determine that it’s not a natural water way it is a dead issue as far as this Board is concerned.

David Zengler: That would be correct.

Commissioner Williams: And if we determine that it is then we set a hearing date.

David Zengler: If you determine that it is a natural waterway and it’s obstruction then you would set it for hearing.

Commissioner Mosbey: And it if’s determined that it’s not a natural waterway then it would be just a matter between him and his neighbors, a civil matter then?

Mr. Zengler: The petition wouldn’t be yes …the petition would be denied because it’s not a …….
Commissioner Mosbey: I’m trying to learn this just like you are.

Mr. Schnell: There are two different sets of laws one for the natural waterway and there is another set for regulated drain, it has to be one or the other so there are another set of laws. It’s just a part of……..

Mr. Zengler:  The petition is under that statute either a mutual drain or a natural surface waterway.

Mr. Schnell: Okay all right I have to ask if it’s not a natural water course how did it get there? I mean this water has been there forever, ever since probably the earth was made so how does it get there if it’s not a natural water course. That is my question to everyone here I don’t even know why it’s an issue because…just because they put a subdivision in right in the middle of the natural water course it is still a natural watercourse but it becomes regulated once is gets in the subdivision. That still as far as we’re concerned it’s a regulated drainage and if you look at the….I don’t know if you seen the e-mail that I sent you guys when that subdivision was approved and I have all the documentation there if you want to see it. The subdivision was approved that pipe was 27-inch that is what was approved for Byron Court, it was approved for 27-inch and they went on and on back and forth with the Board the people couldn’t decide so the Board here in the minutes that I’ve got says the Board told the homeowners association in 1994 to actually fix that pipe, fix that drainage problem is what the Board told the Homeowners Association and the people to do. As I say I can get you a copy I bought it all from the County myself anyway so it says that they were to fix that in 1994.
Commissioner Williams: Let me interrupt you while it’s on my mind, can you give us a date and time of those minutes because I have not seen those minutes.

Mr. Schnell: Okay, did you get my e-mail? All the dates are on there but I’ve got them right here in fact if there is a copy machine and you guys pay for the copies you can have a copy of all of them.  My other point goes for the fact that it was approved for the 27 there has been two engineering studies by Andy Easley and all of a sudden somewhere along the way I guess from Engineering Consultants it was in there that it wasn’t…..it was ruled a 24 inch needed to be in there so time and time again they were trying to get this subdivision approved and things were pointed out. There was a 15 inch culvert where a 24 inch belonged but originally it was approved for 27. But if you further study that subdivision like we have you will find that the pipe going across Grimm Road should be a 36-inch pipe if you look at the pipe and my e-mail it will tell you what size it’s an oblong pipe it’s not round and this pipe is too small neither one of the dimensions are 36-inch. And then you keep looking and the pipe is 115 feet out of the easement the recorded easement goes to the corner of lot 44 which is in the far corner of that subdivision it’s not even in the drainage easement granted by Bob Grimm. It’s not even in the easement so all these things are filled in and I don’t know. So there are things that I think you guys should look at as well because Mr. Messmer bought his lot in 1992 and at that time according to those records that pipe was not in the ground, because you can see it clearly by the engineering clearly states there was two lots which were 40 and 41 those two lots they were constantly complaining just like we are because the flooding was getting over them. So the Messmer’s put their pipe in and now the flooding is up on us, so I mean the problem….he put the pipe in he says the County put the pipe in but it’s clearly there in 94 that pipe was not in the ground. So I  mean I don’t know I’ve got all this stuff if you tell me where you’re going to be at I’ll get someone to copy it.
Commissioner Mosbey: We’ll get it after the meeting.

Mr. Schnell: I guess the other issue I don’t know if you seen my e-mail this natural water course I’m not sure you know why I have to get it approved to get a pipe in my unregulated natural water course. I don’t know if any of you read my e-mail. But it is a natural unregulated water course you can visit any web site in any County and they will tell you it’s a natural unregulated water course. If you call Vanderburgh County they don’t regulate it because they can’t the only thing they have…….
Commissioner Mosbey: We’ve read your e-mail.

Mr. Schnell: But my point is can we go ahead and get my pipe do we have to wait.

Commissioner Williams: I don’t think this Board has any control on what you do on your private property.

Mr. Schnell: Okay so I can go ahead and put my pipe in?

Commissioner Williams: Wrong or right?

David Zengler: If it’s in an unregulated easement then you know his only issue would be with his neighbors if they are damaged they can sue him, but that is between him and them it’s not this Board.

Mr. Schnell: Yeah, well you can’t sue on the water course anyway so the only way is if I concentrate and I’m not going to concentrate any water all I’m going to do is take the water that is from the east side of me and let it go to the west. My water I want to go on top of a swale on top of my pipe and go down naturally just like it always has, I am not going to dump any more water that comes there that water has always been there forever it comes from Grimm Road or somewhere up there and the only reason I say I need to get this released is because in a meeting on August 2009 its recorded there that you guys required us to get an engineer report.

Commissioner Mosbey: I think Mr. Howard wanted to speak on this.
Bobby Howard: In August of 09 you were here initially on a different issue and you brought up what you needed to do to be able to enclose your ditch and at that time you know and I’ve talked to you since then and at that time you know I thought you were asking this Board for permission to enclose your ditch and for this Board to give that permission they would need drainage calcs and all that. Since then we have talked and discussed that it was just in your best interest to do that so no one could come back on you later and say that you were causing the problem.

Mr. Schnell: Right backing the water up is the only they could do so……I’m good with that if you guys are releasing that initial thing you put on me earlier I’m good with that then.

Commissioner Mosbey: I think that is the general consensus. 

Commissioner Noffsinger: I don’t plan on acting on that.

Commissioner Williams: If it’s not a legal drain or an easement I don’t think we have any jurisdiction period.

Mr. Schnell: Right, I just wanted to make sure that it was in the minutes because I want to get a copy of it for my records.

Thank you.

CITIZENS COMMENTS/CONCERNS:

Commissioner Mosbey: Next on the agenda is citizen’s comments and concerns, step right up. Please state your name and address.

Keith Messmer: 10133 Byron Court. Just so I understand what is going on. Can you walk me through the process here now because we are all over the Board, is it the drain, is it the landscaping, is it the fact that they are going to try and push more water down through, I’m at a loss here. What is the next step, the next step is for this report…..

Commissioner Mosbey: We need to read this report and if this report help me out Mr. Attorney?
If this report tells us that it is a natural water way you step in

David Zengler: The statute provides that the County Surveyor and I think you have the right to delegate that to Mr. Sherwood if you so desire, must find an existing obstruction in the natural surface water course in the location alleged in the petition. The County Surveyor shall report that existence of the obstruction to the Drainage Board so until that is done you can’t do anything further. Once that is done if in fact it’s ever done, if it’s done then you would set it for hearing and set a date for hearing and notify Mr. Messmer.
Commissioner Mosbey: So if this report tells us whether there is an obstruction or not that doesn’t matter if this report tells us that it is not a water way, a natural water way it is a dead issue but if he does say it’s a natural water way and the Surveyor or Mr. Sherwood tells us there is an obstruction then we would address that with whoever created the obstruction.

Mr. Messmer: Okay and then that is where it goes into the next steps from the legal standpoint.

David Zengler: Then we would have a public hearing if they find that.

Mr. Messmer: Then I would present my side.

David Zengler: And Mr. Shively can be here if you so desire.

Commissioner Mosbey: We’ve got to go by the rules of the State of Indiana.

Mr. Messmer: Yes, I understand, so we’re not dealing with the pipe we’re dealing with the…right now that is all I have notice of.

Commissioner Mosbey: The pipe is no longer….in my opinion is no longer an issue with this Board what he does on his property is his business.

Mr. Messmer: I couldn’t care less.

Commissioner Mosbey: The only issue on the table is the petition he filed for this Public Hearing and we have to determine whether in fact we have business even conducting a public hearing. That is what we’re waiting to read this and from the Surveyor and Mr. Sherwood.
Mr. Messmer: So that will happen on the July 12…..

Commissioner Mosbey: That will happen on our July 12th Meeting, the second Monday of the month.

Mr. Schnell: The pipe you’re referring to is my pipe not your pipe but the pipe in the subdivision should be your issue.

Commissioner Mosbey: That will be determined at the Public Hearing.

Mr. Schnell: Right, but I mean the pipe in the subdivision that is 15-inch I mean it’s your guy’s pipe, I mean you should take care of that any way because that is on your own its in a regulated ditch it’s a highway right of way.

David Zengler: It’s not your pipe is it?

Bobby: No

Mr. Schnell: Once it gets in a subdivision the pipe……

Bobby: Inside the subdivision on Mr. Messmer’s property is not in any type of drainage easement as a part of that subdivision, it does run down and tie into some culverts that are in the road right of way down by his drive way so there are some additional culverts down there that I believe were installed in 94.
Commissioner Noffsinger: Wouldn’t this be an Association issue?

Bobby: That is what was determined in 1994 there was some kind of issue in 94 they came before the Board to get the street plans approved, the Commissioner’s at that time were made aware of this drainage problem between lots 40 and 41and if they wanted to…I believe the County actually went in and at that time and there was an agreement between the property owners and the County in regards to make sure those pipes were changed out to pipes that would drain and at that time they came back and put in those 15-inch pipes that are down there now.

Mr. Schnell: No no the county put in the 15-inch pipes?

Bobby: Yes not the ones through Mr. Messmers yard but the ones in front of lots 40 and 41 those along that the County put in in 94.

Mr. Schnell: Where do you have that record at? I would like to see a copy of that where they actually put in a 15-inch pipe the County did because everything I see…..

Bobby: Because the County Engineer back in 88 gave me I think it was a Mr. Chambers a 12-inch pipe size at that time you saw that they put that on the…that was in the minutes that you have too about the 12-inch pipe that was approved at that time at that location. Mr. Chambers had done a ditch enclosure and it was done incorrectly at that time and so the County came in and fixed it but according to the minutes we didn’t pay for the pipe, we just did the labor on the enclosure.

Mr. Schnell: I have to see that I didn’t run across that I know that the County called him out on that pipe that 15-inch pipe being to small, the 15-inch they were talking about you may be referring to is down on Byron Court where they had to change out the pipe in order to get the streets paved. The County did actually go down on Woodstower and that is where they put the pipes in, they called…..someone it wasn’t Chambers it was Hostetler they actually got a permit for 128 feet, I know this stuff I’ve read it over and over so 128 feet and his lot is like 150 feet he did get a permit for a partial of his lot but he didn’t get enough permit to do all his lot. He was approved for 128 feet that is two lots down from me but all the rest of them they just filled the ditch in they were told by the Board in 94 to take care of their problem, that’s what is there. All the pipes that you talk about installed by the County were not on property.
Commissioner Mosbey: This will all be addressed in the Public Hearing.

Mr. Schnell: I will get you a copy, is there a copy machine around here that I can use?
Commissioner Mosbey: Yes let us finish our meeting here.

CLAIMS: 

Commissioner Mosbey: Next item is claims, you have a new revised…the total is $2,529.85 would be the claims for this month. Do I have a motion?

Commissioner Williams: Move to pay claims?
Commissioner Noffsinger: I haven’t seen the updated one.

Commissioner Mosbey: All she did is this one was paid out of the Surveyor’s account so she subtracted it from the total, the $78.11 was a mistake. So the total is not quite as high as the original one you received. The motion is to approve $2,529.85.

Commissioner Noffsinger: Second

Motion was made and seconded to pay claims. Motion passed 3-0.

DEPARTMENT OF STORM WATER

Commissioner Mosbey: Moving into Storm Water real quick, do you have anything, Mr. Howard?

IDEM AUDIT:

Bobby Howard: I have two things I wanted to discuss, one was just to mention that we did have our audit with IDEM this past Tuesday June 22nd. I think it went well she will be sending her report out within 30 days that list the things that she would like to see addressed. In regards to that when she reviewed the Highway Department there were some things that she would like to see looked at in regards to a truck wash possibly extending the apron around the gas tanks and some of those items.
Commissioner Mosbey: Rip rapping the ditch.

Bobby: Yes, there were some things that we’ve put together. We put together a Storm Water Pollution Plan for the Highway Department our office did in regards to this MS-4 meeting and basically she had added a few things that she would like to see and done. She will probably put that in her report and we can address it, we just needed to put a time table together as to when we will be able to address the issues. But it is something that Storm Water could fund so that helps immensely in regards to having that done.

Commissioner Mosbey:  And for the Board’s information I spent the day with Bobby and Noelle and her and she had some very good idea’s what they want to see is Storm Water getting more involved with our local Soil and Water Conservation District and our Solid Waste Management District and I know there has been a request on our desk from the…and they came to our Commissioner’s Meeting the Soil and Water Board for funding half the salary of a part time position and she said that would perfectly fit and that would give Storm Water brownie points if we could use Storm Water money to do that because they are going to be……

Bobby: We would need some kind of memorandum agreement between us and Soil and Water and maybe we can ask them to….some soil and water districts I don’t know how much ours is involved in school programs or anything or what they are involved in. But if they do some kind of school program we could have them do some pollution preventions. We can put some strings on the money.

Commissioner Mosbey: And knowing how you two would respond I had already talked to Bobby their next meeting is scheduled July 20th they meet the third Tuesday at 7:30 in the morning and I got us on their agenda so Mr. Howard can go and speak with the Soil and Water Board and I think they need us as bad as we need them.
Commissioner Williams: I would like to make a motion, Mr. President. I would move that we go ahead and approve funding that position out of Storm Water provided they are willing to accept it and are in agreement and have Mr. Zengler immediately after their meeting let him go ahead and start drafting an agreement with the Soil and Water Conservation District.
Commissioner Noffsinger: That is for the part time position?

Commissioner Mosbey: Yes, they are funding half and then they were asking us to fund half and it is about $7,000.00 or $8,000.00.

Commissioner Noffsinger: I will second that motion.

Bobby: I would just like to you know the agreement needs to have something in it in regards to us getting a return for…..

Commissioner Williams: Yes, it does I’m just talking about that and once you have that meeting on the 20th…well we have plenty of time.

Commissioner Mosbey: Is the intent of your motion just to say we are okay with funding this, as long as Bobby can work out the details is that what you are trying to say?

Commissioner Williams: Exactly

Commissioner Mosbey: And you are in agreement with that.

Commissioner Noffsinger: I am in agreement with that.

Commissioner Williams: We definitely need those educational points and public…….
Commissioner Mosbey: Big time IDEM she referred to EPA that is what they are looking for you know water quality in the County and those two boards Soil and Water and Solid Waste that is good organizations to work with and she acted like we would be at the top of her list if we did stuff like that. I tried to get a grade out of her but she wouldn’t give me a grade that day. There is a motion and second on the floor all in favor say aye.

Motion passed with 3 ayes.

Commissioner Mosbey: So Bobby and myself will go to that July 20th meeting at 7:30 in the morning and see what they got to work out with Mr. Oxley and Craig Farmer, that group.

What else do you have, Bobby?

Bobby: Her other issue she wanted was in regards to our employee training. The Highway Department basically getting…is our number 1 priority I guess in regards to being trained on pollution prevention in regards to Storm Water and Terry Fisher with the Town of Chandler called me today and let me know that he does have…he had purchased some of that training video with the tests and things and that he would be willing to let us use it when we wanted to. I wanted to report that to the Board as the cost is about $500 to $600.

Commissioner Mosbey: She highly recommended that Sam needs to start having more training.

Commissioner Williams: The other issue is about the washing area.
Commissioner Mosbey: Well, as long as he puts that in a plan.

That is something we don’t have to do this year, just so you have it scheduled in a plan that is what they want to see. Just so you are going to do something in the next 7 to 10 years you’re ok with them. We have to extend the concrete pad around our fueling station out there and we need to make a concrete pad to wash the highway trucks off in. We have to put a 2-inch curb around the salt storage building but we don’t have to do it right now just so it’s in our plan.

Bobby: That is all I have.

Commissioner Mosbey: She was a very nice lady. I guess because is was so hot and nasty she forgot all about the parts department and the animal control she was supposed to visit those two. The only other item I have on y business I brought up last meeting for you two to think about….Bobby had mentioned that we could legally use some Storm Water money to help out on the drainage issues in the County concerning creeks strictly legal drains and I didn’t know if you wanted to address that any further today. Fall is coming up and we could start doing some clearing of ditches.

Commissioner Williams: My thought would be that we support that but on a project by project basis, I don’t want to say lets set aside this amount or that amount. I think we could have the Surveyor give us input and let us know what his priorities are and then request the funding from this Board.
Commissioner Noffsinger: That is where we left it at the last meeting nothing has been brought up since then.

Commissioner Mosbey: Nothing official has been acted upon I just brought it up for discussion last meeting and then I thought I would bring it up again today to see how you guys…you know make a motion to instruct the surveyor to show us what he would like to fund.

Commissioner Noffsinger: That is what we done last meeting.

Phil Baxter: The main one we’ve been working on is Little Pigeon but we would like to stay away from that until we find out about our grant money.

Commissioner Mosbey: What is the date on that grant that you are supposed to hear?

Phil: We don’t have a clue.

Commissioner Mosbey: No, idea?

Phil: No, it’s still going.

Commissioner Williams:  If ….never mind I don’t want to say anything….

Phil: We’ve got other areas we could go but this is not the time of year you can get in there.

Commissioner Mosbey: No you can’t get in there now, so is the general consensus yeah we’re all okay to let Phil……

Commissioner Noffsinger: I would assume act on something when we have something substantial to act on.

Commissioner Mosbey: you heard it Mr. Surveyor. Anything else?

Commissioner Williams: Motion to adjourn

Commissioner Noffsinger: Second

Motion passed 4-0.
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